
 

 

Notice of Meeting and Agenda 

Pensions Committee 

 

2.00 pm Wednesday, 9th December, 2020 

Meeting will be by conference call. 

 

 

 

The law allows the Committee to consider some issues in private. Any items under “Private 

Business” will not be published, although the decisions will be recorded in the minute. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contacts 

Susan Handyside, Governance Manager, Lothian Pension Fund 

Tel:  07771 

Email:  susan.handyside@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Lesley Birrell, Committee Services, City of Edinburgh Council 

Tel: 0131 529 4240 

Email: lesley.birrell@edinburgh.gov.uk  

 

 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:susan.handyside@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:lesley.birrell@edinburgh.gov.uk


 

                      Pensions Committee - 9 December 2020 Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Quorum Check 

1.1   The Convener will check to ensure a quorum is in attendance to 

ensure the meeting can proceed. 

 

 

2. Order of Business 

2.1   Including any notices of motion and any other items of business 

submitted as urgent for consideration at the meeting. 

 

 

3. Declaration of Interests 

3.1   Members of the Committee and members of the Pensions Board 

should declare any financial and non‐financial interests they have in 

the items of business for consideration, identifying the relevant 

agenda item and the nature of their interest. 

 

 

 

4. Deputations 

4.1   If any 

 

 

5. Minutes 

5.1   Minute of Pensions Committee of 29 September 2020 (circulated) - 

submitted for approval as a correct record  

 

 

7 - 18 



 

                      Pensions Committee - 9 December 2020 Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 

6. Reports 

6.1   Referrals and Recommendations from Pensions Audit Sub-Committee 

 

 

6.2   Agenda Planning – Report by the Chief Risk Officer, Lothian Pension 

Fund (circulated) 

 

19 - 24 

6.3   Stewardship and Engagement – Report by the Chief Investment Officer, 

Lothian Pension Fund (circulated) 

 

25 - 40 

6.4   Operating Plan Update – Report by the Chief Finance Officer, Lothian 

Pension Fund (circulated) 

 

41 - 52 

6.5   Risk Management Summary – Report by the Chief Risk Officer, Lothian 

Pension Fund (circulated) 

 

53 - 74 

7. Motions 

7.1   If any 

 

 

8. Resolution to Consider in Private 

8.1   The Committee is requested under Section 50(A)(4) of the Local 

Government (Scotland) Act 1973, to exclude the public from the 

meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they 

would involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in 

Paragraphs 1.3 and 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A of the Act. 

 

 

 



 

                      Pensions Committee - 9 December 2020 Page 4 of 6 

 

 

 

9. Private Business 

9.1   Governance Update – Report by the Chief Risk Officer, Lothian Pension 

Fund (circulated) 

 

75 - 96 

Andrew Kerr 

Chief Executive 

 

Committee Members 
 

Councillors Rankin (Convener), Child, Burgess, Rose and Neil Ross; John Anzani and Richard 

Lamont. 

Please note that members of the Pensions Board and the Independent Professional 

Observer will also be invited to attend and participate in the meeting. 

Information about the Pensions Committee 
 

The Pensions Committee consists of 5 Councillors and 2 external members and is appointed 

by the City of Edinburgh Council in its separate capacity as administering authority of the 

Lothian Pension Fund. The Pensions Committee usually meets 4 times a year (every twelve 

weeks). 

Meeting will be via conference call.  The meeting will be monitored by Susan Handyside. 

The Committee Term of Reference and Procedural Standing Orders.  

Pension Board Members 
 

Alan Williamson, Brian Robertson, Darren May, Jim Anderson, Sharon Dalli, Thomas 

Carr‐Pollock and Tom Howorth. 

Information about the Pension Board 
 

The Pension Board consists of 10 members, 5 members from the employer bodies and 5 

members from trade unions representing members within the pension funds as set out in the 

regulations. 

The role of the Pension Board is to help ensure that the operation of the pension funds is in 

accordance with the applicable law and regulation.  

https://www.lpf.org.uk/us . 

https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.lpf.org.uk/downloads/file/97/lpf-procedural-standing-orders
https://www.lpf.org.uk/us


 

                      Pensions Committee - 9 December 2020 Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 

Independent Professional Observer 
 

Andy McKinnell 

Information about the Independent Professional Observer 
 

The Independent Professional Observer is appointed by the Lothian Pension Fund to help 

strengthen the Lothian Pension Fund’s governance. The role is to provide independent 

observations to the Pensions Committee and Pension Board. 

The purpose of the role is to enhance the scrutiny of the decision making and provide the 

Committee and Board with additional experience and knowledge impartial from the Lothian 

Pension Fund’s Officers. 

City of Edinburgh Council Oversight 
 

The City of Edinburgh Council has statutory responsibility to administer the Lothian and 

Scottish Homes pension funds. In order to most effectively carry out that function (and to 

reflect the separate statutory responsibilities, and regulation, of the pension funds) the City of 

Edinburgh Council has delegated management responsibility for the pension funds to the 

Lothian Pension Fund Group and its two arms-length companies LPFE Limited and LPFI Limited. 

Critical parent oversight continues to be carried out by the Pensions Committee and Dr 

Stephen S. Moir, Executive Director of Resources for the City of Edinburgh Council, as the 

Administering Authority for the Fund, to ensure that its statutory functions are being properly 

carried out.  

Lothian Pension Fund Senior Leadership Team 
 

The senior leadership team responsible and accountable for the business and activities of the 

Lothian Pension Fund Group are: 

Doug Heron, Chief Executive Officer  

Bruce Miller, Chief Investment Officer  

Struan Fairbairn, Chief Risk Officer  

John Burns, Chief Finance Officer 

Helen Honeyman, Head of People and Communications 

Further Information and Contact 
 

If you have any questions about the agenda or meeting arrangements, please contact Susan 

Handyside, Governance Manager, Lothian Pension Fund, Atria One, 144 Morrison Street, 

Edinburgh EH3 8EX, Tel 07771378238, email susan.handyside@edinburgh.gov.uk . 

mailto:susan.handyside@edinburgh.gov.uk


 

                      Pensions Committee - 9 December 2020 Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 

The agenda, minutes and public reports for this meeting can be viewed via the City of 

Edinburgh Council committee portal.  

 

https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


 
Pensions Committee – 29 September 2020       Page 1 

 

 

Pensions Committee Minutes 

2pm, Tuesday 29 September 2020  

Present: 

Councillors Munn (Convener), Burgess, Child, Rose and Neil Ross; John Anzani and Richard Lamont. 

Pension Board Members present: 

Jim Anderson, Thomas Carr-Pollock, Sharon Dalli, Lesley Henderson, Tom Howorth, Darren May, 

Brian Robertson and Alan Williamson. 

Other Attendees: 

Andy McKinnell, Independent Professional Observer and Nick Bennett, Azets Audit Services (External 

Auditor) 

 

1. Quorum 

The Clerk confirmed that notice of the meeting had been given and that a quorum was present 

and the Convener declared the meeting open. 

2. Order of Business 

The Clerk advised there was no change to the order of business. 

3. Declaration of Interests 

Following the invitation from the Convener, Richard Lamont declared a non-financial  

interest in relation to minute item 16 as an employee of VisitScotland and John Anzani declared a 

non-financial interest as his wife was a non-Executive Director on the Board of Enjoy Leisure. 

4. Minutes 

Decision 

To approve the minute of the Pensions Committee of 24 June 2020 as a correct record subject to a 

post-meeting note being added clarifying the procedural advice given in relation to varying standing 

orders. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5.1



 

 

Pensions Committee – 29 September 2020      Page 2 

5. Referrals/recommendations from the Pensions Audit Sub-committee 

Councillor Rose advised the Committee of the discussion and decisions taken at the Pensions 

Audit Sub-Committee meeting on 28 September 2020 as they related to items of business at 

this meeting. 

(Reference – Pensions Audit Sub-Committee 28 September 2020) 

6. Pension Board oversight 

The Chair of the Pension Board advised the Committee of the relevant discussion and decisions 

taken at the Pension Board meeting and confirmed that the Pension Board would provide 

comment on other relevant matters during the meeting. 

7. Agenda planning 

An overview of proposed reports for future Pensions Committee and Pensions Audit Sub-Committee 

meetings and the annual cycle was presented. 

Decision 

1) To note the agenda planning document. 

2) To note that pensions board members were invited to comment on agenda items during 

committee meetings. 

3) To note that the unaudited and audited accounts would continue to be considered by both 

the Audit Sub-Committee and the Pensions Committee.  

4) To agree that if there were any financial or significant textual changes between the unaudited 

and audited versions of the accounts, these would be highlighted and reported to the 

Pensions Committee. 

5) To agree that, going forward, the annual LPF Group governance update would be reported to 

the Pensions Committee only. 

6) To agree that the quarterly risk summary report would continue to be reported to the 

Pensions Committee in December and the in-depth risk management review would continue 

to be reported to the Audit Sub Committee in December. 

7) To agree that the Internal Audit Plan would be developed in consultation with the Convener 

of the Audit Sub-Committee, Chief Executive Officer (LPF) with input from the Independent 

Professional Observer if appropriate. 

8) To note that Audit Sub-Committee members would have the opportunity of making 

recommendations on items for inclusion in the Internal Audit Plan as part of their 

consideration of the in-depth review of risk management scheduled for the December 2020 

meeting. 

(Reference – report by the Chief Risk Officer, LPF, submitted.) 

Page 8



 

 

Pensions Committee – 29 September 2020      Page 3 

8. LPF Audited Annual Accounts (and Financial Statements) 2020 

Details were provided of the audited Annual Report (and Financial Statements) for the year ended 31 

March 2020 for Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish Homes Pension Fund 

In the context of sizeable falls in both the global and UK equity markets over the financial year, the 

Accounts showed that the Lothian Pension Fund (Group) net asset valuation had decreased from 

£7,817m to £7,497m, a reduction of 4.3%.  Given its mature membership profile and gilts investment 

strategy, the Scottish Homes Pension Fund had remained static at £166m. 

Azets Audit Services (formerly Scott Moncrieff) intended to provide an unqualified opinion on the 

financial statements and other prescribed matters for Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish Homes 

Pension Fund and intended also to confirm that there were no matters on which it was required to 

report by exception. 

Decision 

1) To note the report by Azets Audit Services (formerly Scott Moncrieff) “Lothian Pension Funds 

2019/20 Annual Audit Report to Members and the Controller of Audit” as set out in Appendix 

1 of the report. 

2) To note the audited Annual Report (and Financial Statements) for the year ended 31 March 

2020 for Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish Homes Pension Fund as set out in Appendix 2 of 

the report. 

3) To note that the audited financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2020, of both the 

wholly owned companies, LPFE Limited and LPFI Limited, were approved by the respective 

Board of Directors in July 2020. These statements are shown in full at Appendices 3 and 4 of 

the report. 

4) To record the Committee’s thanks to the external auditor and is team for their work on the 

accounts in challenging circumstances. 

5) To refer the report to the Council on 15 October 2020 for noting. 

(Reference – report by the Chief Finance Officer, LPF, submitted.) 

9.  LPF Contract Awards (Period 1 January to 30 June 2020) 

The Council’s Commercial and Procurement Services (CPS) team provided support services to the LPF 

Group in relation to procurement activity and payment operations. 

An update was presented to members on the scope of contracts awarded by the LPF Group during 

the period 1 January to 30 June 2030. 

Decision 

To note the Lothian Pension Fund Contract Award update. 

(Reference – report by the Chief Executive Officer, LPF, submitted.) 

Page 9



 

 

Pensions Committee – 29 September 2020      Page 4 

10. McCloud and Goodwin Discrimination Judgements - Update 

The Scottish Public Pensions Agency (SPPA) had issued a consultation to Local Government Pension 

Scheme (LGPS) members and employers on proposals to address the age discrimination in scheme 

reforms in 2015 together with an update on the cost control mechanism and changes to survivor 

benefits between same and opposite sex widowers. 

The potential for a joint response to be submitted to SPPA by the Investment Governance Group 

comprising senior officers of the LGPS administering authorities was currently being explored. 

Key points that the LPF Group wished to make in its response to the SPPA were set out in the report. 

The significant administrative burden and communications challenges of the McLeod rectification 

were also highlighted. 

Members discussed the complexities around the Scottish Local Government Pension Schemes and 

the need to consolidate and simplify the Schemes’ benefit entitlement regulations. 

Decision 

1) To note the report and that further regular progress updates would be provided. 

2) To note that the detailed response to the SPPA consultation would be submitted by the Chief 

Executive Officer, following consultation with the Convener, by the due date of 23 October 

2020. 

(Reference – report by the Chief Executive Officer, LPF, submitted.) 

11. Operating Plan Update 

An update was provided on progress against the 2020-2021 Operating Plan, performance indicators 

and the actions carried out to enable the Fund to meet its key objectives.  The Plan centred around 

the following six broadly-defined strategic goals and formed the basis of the work ahead of the Fund 

in 2020/21: 

• Provide secure and affordable benefits for our members 

• Reduce complexity 

• Manage our risks 

• Create a place where people do great work 

• Influence the LGPS of the future 

• Be responsible 

Decision 

1) To note progress of the Fund against the 2020-2021 Operating Plan and the specific updates 

on performance indicators, annual benefit statements and membership and cashflow 

monitoring. 

2) To note that a report would be submitted to the Audit Sub-Committee in December 2020 on 

data quality and the outcomes of the analysis being undertaken on behalf of the Fund. 

Page 10



 

 

Pensions Committee – 29 September 2020      Page 5 

(Reference - report by the Chief Finance Officer, LPF, submitted.) 

12. Risk Management Summary  

In line with LPF’s ongoing risk management procedures, an overview was provided of its risk analysis. 

Information was also provided on the enhancement of the LPF Group’s operating model and the 

extension of its service delivery to other LGPS funds.  In doing so, the Group had taken on 

additional operational risk in order to achieve fundamental benefits for its stakeholders.  

The Chief Risk Officer advised members that a new risk had been added around Group culture 

and staff engagement and adapting to current level scenarios in line with the FCA emphasis on 

culture and control. 

Members also discussed the inter-dependencies between failure of IT systems, cyber security and 

business continuity.  Members also commented on the changing situation and legislation 

relating to reporting on climate change as part of investment portfolios and received assurance 

that the LPF Group were alert to this potential reporting requirement.  

More granular risks arising from the pandemic had also been identified and closely managed at 

an operational level by the Recovery Group established expressly for this purpose. 

The overall position remained stable and within appetite in the context of the longer-term risk 

reduction benefits of the ongoing transformation projects and the circumstances of the global 

pandemic. 

Decision 

1) To note the quarterly risk overview and the LPF Group’s approach to risk management. 

2) To note that the procedure for reporting incidents to the Information Commissioner 

would be included as an update in a future report. 

(Reference - report by the Chief Risk Officer, LPF, submitted.) 

13. Motion by John Anzani – Nomination to the Executive Committee of the 

Local Authority Pension Funds Forum for 2020/21 

The following motion was submitted by John Anzani in terms of Standing Order 11.2: 

“The Pensions Cttee agrees to nominate John Anzani for election to the Executive Committee of 

the Local Authority Pension Funds Forum [LAPFF] for the period 2020/21 (as defined by LAPFF 

Constitution).” 

- moved by John Anzani, seconded by Councillor Rose 

Decision 

To approve the motion. 

Page 11



 

 

Pensions Committee – 29 September 2020      Page 6 

14. Motion by John Anzani – Principle to Guide Repayment of Surplus – 

Proposed Amendment to Funding Strategy Statement 

Decision 

To note that John Anzani had withdrawn his motion in light of further information provided 

by the Chief Executive Officer, LPF. 

15. Employers Participating in Lothian Pension Fund 

The Committee, under Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, excluded the 

public from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it would involve the 

disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 6 and 9 of Schedule 7(A) of the Act. 

An update was provided on current matters affecting employers participating in the Lothian 

Pension Fund. 

Decision 

Detailed in the confidential schedule, signed by the Convener, with reference to this minute. 

(Reference – report by the Chief Finance Officer, LPF, submitted.) 

16. Employer Covenant Review 2020 

The Committee, under Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, excluded the 

public from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it would involve the 

disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 6 and 9 of Schedule 7(A) of the Act. 

An overview was submitted of the recent employer covenant analysis undertaken by the Fund 

in preparation for the 2020 Actuarial Valuation.  In terms of overall liability exposure, the Fund 

continued to have good covenant assurance. 

Decision 

Detailed in the confidential schedule, signed by the Convener, with reference to this minute. 

(Reference – report by the Chief Finance Officer, LPF, submitted.) 

17. ICT Update 

The Committee, under Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, excluded the 

public from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it would involve the 

disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 6 and 9 of Schedule 7(A) of the Act. 

Information was provided on progress with the Fund’s ICT pathway and digital strategy. 

Decision 

Detailed in the confidential schedule, signed by the Convener, with reference to this minute. 

(Reference – report by the Chief Executive Officer, LPF, submitted.) 

Page 12



 

 

Pensions Committee – 29 September 2020      Page 7 

18. Local Government Pension Scheme Collaborative Update 

The Committee, under Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, excluded the 

public from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it would involve the 

disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 6 and 9 of Schedule 7(A) of the Act. 

An update was presented setting out the parameters for a proposed collaboration within the 

Local Government Pension Scheme. 

Decision 

Detailed in the confidential schedule, signed by the Convener, with reference to this minute. 

(Reference – report by the Chief Executive Officer, LPF, submitted.) 

19. Annual LPF Group Governance Update 

The Committee, under Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, excluded the 

public from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it would involve the 

disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 6 and 9 of Schedule 7(A) of the Act. 

The annual update on the operation of the LPF Group’s legal, regulatory and governance 

structures including the activities of LPFI Ltd and LPFE Ltd was presented. 

Decision 

Detailed in the confidential schedule, signed by the Convener, with reference to this minute. 

(Reference – report by the Chief Executive Officer, LPF, submitted.) 

 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15

by virtue of paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A
 of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973.



This page is intentionally left blank



Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 9 December 2020 Page 1 

Pensions Committee 
2.00pm, Wednesday, 9 December 2020 

Agenda Planning 

1.  Recommendations

Struan Fairbairn 
Chief Risk Officer, Lothian Pension Fund 

Contact: Susan Handyside, Governance Manager, Lothian Pension Fund 

E-mail: susan.handyside@edinburgh,gov,uk | Tel: 07771 378238

Page 19

Agenda Item 6.2

mailto:susan.handyside@edinburgh,gov,uk


 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 2 

Agenda Planning 

 

2. Executive Summary 

 

 

3. Background 

 

 

4. Main Report 

 

 

March 2020 

Pensions Committee 

• Referrals / recommendations from Pensions Audit-Sub Committee 
• Audit plans and reports (internal and external) * 
• Actuarial Valuation: LPF, Scottish Homes Pension Fund 
• Funding Strategy Statement 
• Policies and Strategies Update 
• Benchmarking 
• Employers Participating in Lothian Pension Fund 
• Lothian Pension Fund Contract Awards Report 

Page 20



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 3 

• Operating Plan Update and Budget 
• Risk management summary  

 
*Draft audits and plan will be developed in consultation with the Convenor of the Audit Sub 
Committee, the CEO (LPF) and, if appropriate, the Independent Professional Observer. 

 

June 2021 

Pensions Committee 

• Referrals / recommendations from 
Pensions Audit-Sub Committee 

• LPF Annual Report and Accounts 
(Unaudited) 

• Statement of Investment Principles 
• Joint Investment Strategy Panel Activity 
• Annual Investment Updates – Lothian 

Pension Fund and Scottish Homes Fund 
• Annual LPF Group Governance Update 
• Risk Management Summary 

 

Audit Sub Committee 

• LPF Annual Report and Accounts 
(Unaudited) 

• LPF Group Controls and Compliance 
• Risk Management Summary 

Future Pensions Committee and Audit Sub Committee dates: 

Please note that Pension Committee and Audit Sub Committee meetings will be held 
virtually until the end of the year and although rooms have been reserved for the Pension 
Committee and Audit Sub Committee in March, an update on whether the meetings will go 
ahead at the venue or be conducted remotely will be communicated nearer the time.   The 
Committee meeting dates for 2021/22 will be approved by Full Council at the beginning of 
2021. 

Pensions Committee   

• Wednesday, 17 March 2021, 2.00pm, 
Dunedin Room, City Chambers (tbc). 

• Wednesday, 23 June 2021, 2.00pm,  
Dunedin Room, City Chambers (tbc). 

Pensions Audit Sub Committee 

• Tuesday, 22 June 2021, 2.00pm,  
Diamond Jubilee Room, City Chambers 
(tbc). 

5. Financial impact 

 

Page 21



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 4 

6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact 

 

 

7. Background reading/external references 

 

8. Appendices 

Appendix 1 – LPF’s Annual Agenda Planning Cycle  

  

Page 22



 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Frequency Pensions Committee Audit Sub Committee Month 
 

Biennial 
 
Operating Plan (biennial from March 2019) 
Administration Strategy (biennial from March 2016) 
 

 
N/A 
N/A 

March 

March 

Annually 

 
Audit Plans (Internal and External) 

 
Draft internal audits and plan will be developed in 
consultation with the Convenor of the Audit Sub Committee, 
the CEO (LPF) and, if appropriate, the Independent 
Professional Observer. 

March 

Policies and Strategies Update (including revised Pension  N/A March 
LPF Budget N/A March 
   
LPF Annual Report and Accounts (Unaudited) LPF Annual Report & Accounts (Unaudited) June 
Statement of Investment Principles N/A June 
Joint Investment Strategy Panel Activity N/A June 
Annual Investment Updates - Lothian Pension Fund and 
Scottish Homes Pension Fund 

N/A 
 

June 
 

Annual LPF Group Governance Update N/A June  
 LPF Group Controls and Compliance  June 
   
Employer Covenant Review N/A September 
Audited Annual Report and Accounts of the Lothian Pension 
Fund and Scottish Homes Pension Fund, including the 
Annual Report by External Auditor. 

Audited Annual Report and Accounts of the Lothian Pension 
Fund and Scottish Homes Pension Fund, including the 
Annual Report by External Auditor. 

 
September 

N/A Irrecoverable overpayment of pensions – decisions made 
under delegated authority  

 
September 

N/A Fraud Prevention  September  
   

 

P
age 23



 
 

Frequency Pensions Committee Audit Sub Committee Month 

  
Annual Report by External Auditor 

 
Annual Report by External Auditor 

 
December (or 
September if 
available) 

Benchmarking N/A December 
N/A EU Tax Claims and Other Income Tax Recoveries December 
N/A Investment Income Review-Cross-Border Withholding Tax December 
Stewardship and Engagement 
N/A 

N/A 
Pensions Data Quality 

December 
December 

N/A Global Custody Services Performance December 
N/A Risk Management: In-depth review December 

Semi 
Annually 

Employers Participating in Lothian Pension Fund 
Lothian Pension Fund Contract Awards Report 

N/A 
N/A 

March & September 
March & September 

3 Times per 
year 

Operating Plan Update N/A March, September & 
December 

Referrals / recommendations from Pensions Audit-Sub  N/A June, September & 
December 

Quarterly Risk Management Summary  Risk Management Summary (In-depth report in December) 
March, June, 
September and 
December 

Every 3  
years 

Actuarial Valuation: LPF SHPF  
Funding Strategy Statement 

N/A December or March 

As 
required 

Delegated authorities (provider appointments) N/A  
Discretions (death grants etc.) N/A  
N/A Internal Audit Reports  
Regulatory Update N/A  
Investment Strategy Reviews (at least every 3 years) N/A  
   

 

P
age 24



Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020 Page 1 

Pensions Committee 
2.00pm, Wednesday, 9 December 2020 

Stewardship and Engagement 

1.  Recommendations

Bruce Miller 
Chief Investment Officer, Lothian Pension Fund 

Contact: David Hickey, Portfolio Manager, Lothian Pension Fund 

E-mail: David.Hickey@edinburgh.gov.uk  | Tel: 0131 469 3611

Page 25

Agenda Item 6.3

mailto:David.Hickey@edinburgh.gov.uk


 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 2 

Stewardship and Engagement 
 

2. Executive Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 3 

3. Background 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 4 

4. Main Report 

LPF - Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28

http://www.unpri.org/


 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 6 

 

 

 

 

 

PRI Assessment Report 2020 

 

 

Page 30



 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 7 

 

 

 

Assets Under Peer Median
Management Module Name LPF 2019 LPF 2020 2020

100% Strategy & Governance A+ A+ A

Indirect - Manager Selection, Appointment & Monitoring

<10% Listed Equity A A A

<10% Fixed Income - Corporate Non-Financial A A A

<10% Private Equity A A A

<10% Property A A A

<10% Infrastructure A A A

Direct & Active Ownership Modules

>50% Listed Equity - Incorporation A A A

>50% Listed Equity - Active Ownership A A B

Page 31



 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 8 

 

 

 

 

 

Portfolio/Benchmark
Q4 2017 Q1 2019 Change Q1 2020 Change

Lothian - All Equities 328.6 325.2 -1.0% 294.9 -9.3%

MSCI All Countries World Index 218.9 200.2 -8.5% 178.1 -11.0%

*Carbon Intensity is the weighted average carbon intensity of the portfolio measured as CO2e / $M sales

Carbon Intensity*

Page 32

http://www.climateaction100.org/


 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 9 

5.  Financial impact 

 

6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact 

 

 

7. Background reading/external references 

 

 

Page 33

https://www.lpf.org.uk/downloads/file/130/annual-report-and-accounts-2019-20
https://www.lpf.org.uk/downloads/file/130/annual-report-and-accounts-2019-20
https://www.lpf.org.uk/downloads/file/129/statement-of-responsible-investment-principles
https://www.lpf.org.uk/downloads/file/129/statement-of-responsible-investment-principles
https://www.lpf.org.uk/downloads/file/24/pri-assessment-2020
https://www.lpf.org.uk/downloads/file/112/hermes-eos-annual-report-2019
https://www.hermes-investment.com/uki/stewardship/
https://www.lpf.org.uk/investment/responsible-investment?documentId=40&categoryId=2
https://www.lpf.org.uk/investment/responsible-investment?documentId=40&categoryId=2
http://www.unpri.org/
http://www.lapfforum.org/


 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 10 

8. Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Stewardship and Engagement initiatives, service providers and data providers 

Page 34



   
   
Item 3a Agenda Planning  Page 1 of 5 

  

Stewardship and Engagement 
 

Pensions Committee 
9 December 2020 

Appendix 1, Item 6.4 
           

Page 35



  
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Stewardship and Engagement Initiatives 
 
The Pensions Committee of Lothian Pension Fund (LPF) became a signatory to the Principles for 
Responsible Investment (PRI) in 2008 and by adopting its Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) at 
least annually since then, it has reaffirmed its commitment to Responsible Investment (RI). 
 
In June 2020, the Pensions Committee endorsed a new Statement of Responsible Investment 
Principles (SRIP), which documents the Fund’s approach to RI in greater detail.  
 
This appendix to the Stewardship and Engagement paper describes the various commercial 
arrangements and collaborative initiatives that officers of the Fund are undertaking to apply the 
principles agreed by the Pensions Committee.  The commercial relationships are naturally kept 
under regular review to satisfy procurement regulations and the collaborative initiatives are similarly 
reviewed to ensure that resources are allocated effectively.       

 
Criteria 

 

 

 

Reporting and Disclosure 
 
Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI) 

Stewardship Code 2020 

Page 36



  
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Taskforce for Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) 

Service Providers 

EOS a Federated Hermes (EOS) 

Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) 

Page 37



  
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

MSCI ESG Research  

GRESB 

Additional Voluntary Initiatives 
 
Climate Action 100+ 

Page 38



  
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Transition Pathway Initiative (TPI)  

CDP 

Institutional Investor Group on Climate Change (IIGCC) 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 1 

 

 
 

Pensions Committee 

2.00pm, Wednesday, 9 December 2020  

 

Operating Plan Update 
 

  

  

 

1.  Recommendations 

 

 

 

 

John Burns 

Chief Finance Officer, Lothian Pension Fund 

Contact: Jason Koumides, Senior Finance Officer, Lothian Pension Fund 

E-mail: Jason.Koumides@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 6245  

Contact: Pamela Bruce, Communications Partner, Lothian Pension Fund 

E-mail: Pamela.Bruce@edinburgh.gov.uk   | Tel: 0131 529 4510   

Page 41

Agenda Item 6.4

mailto:Jason.Koumides@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:Pamela.Bruce@edinburgh.gov.uk


 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 2 

Operating Plan Update 
 

2. Executive Summary 

 

 

3. Background 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. Main Report 

 

Page 42



 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 4 

New Starts 20 1,548 1,153 74% 4,167 2,206 53%

Leavers 20 1,640 645 39% 1,757 805 46%

Retirements 20 506 194 38% 703 266 38%

Deaths in 

Service 
10 6 3 50% 6 5 83%

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 44



 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 5 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 6 

5. Financial impact 

 

Category 

  
Projected 
Outturn 

 
Projected 
Variance 

 
Budget 
to date 

 
Actual 
to date 

 
Variance 
to date 

Approved 
Budget  

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Employees 5,986 5,902 (84) 2,993 2,668 (325) 

Transport & 
Premises 

499 240 (259) 250 113 (137) 

Supplies & 
Services 

2,115 2,115 - 1,058 990 (68) 

Investment 
Managers Fees  4,700 4,100 (600) 2,350 1,776 (574) 

-Invoiced  

-Uninvoiced 18,700 18,700 - 9,350 9,350 - 

Other Third-
Party 
Payments 

1,495 1,406 (89) 748 612 (136) 

Central 
Support Costs 

519 519 - 260 260 - 

Depreciation 249 173 (76) 125 79 (46) 

Gross 
Expenditure 

34,263 33,155 (1,108) 17,134 15,848 (1,286) 

Income (2,342) (1,980) 362 (1,171) (877) 294 

Total Cost to 
the Funds 

31,921 31,175 (746) 15,963 14,971 (992) 

 

 

Page 46



 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 7 

• Employees – £84k underspend. A small number of posts have been held 

vacant. This, together with the timing of recruitment, including replacements, 

has resulted in a projected underspending. 

• Transport and Premises – £259k underspend. The Fund has postponed its 

move into new premises and plans to reassess the position next year. In the 

meantime, the current office will be refurbished to comply with social 

distancing requirements, which will also improve any future marketing 

potential for the unit.  

• Investment Management Fees (Invoiced) - £600k underspend.  Charges on 

external managed portfolios are based on market values.  At present market 

values are below the assumptions used for budget (8% increase in value from 

December 2019 valuation). 

• Depreciation – With the office move postponed for the time being a £76k 

underspend is expected. The capitalisation of the refurbishment of the 

current office is also included in this figure. 

• Income – £362k below budget. Income in relation to collaborative partners is 

based on a cost sharing mechanism. Due to underspend against budget, in 

particular against property costs, as well as the lower than expected deal 

flow in relation to collaborative investments, income is expected to be below 

original forecast.  There is currently a significant uptick in deal-flow which will 

feed into the figures by the close of the financial year. 

 

 

6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact 

 

7. Background reading/external references 

 

Page 47

https://www.lpf.org.uk/downloads/file/122/lpf-operating-plan-2020-2021


 

  

Pensions Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 8 

8. Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Operating Plan Performance Indicators 

Appendix 2 – Forecast Cashflow 

Page 48



 

  

Operating Plan  

 

Pensions Committee 

9 December 2020 

Appendix 1 and 2, Item 6.4 

           

Page 49



                                                                                                                                                               Appendix 1  

Operating Plan Performance Indicators – Targets & Actual Performance 2020/21 

 Q1 

April to 
June 

Q2 

July to 
Sept 

Q3 

Oct to Dec 

Target Status 

Maintain Customer Service Excellence 
Standard 

Annual assessment in January 2021 Retain CSE 
Award 

Not yet 
known 

Maintain Pensions Administration 
Standards Association (PASA) accreditation. 

Re-accreditation in November  

 

Retain PASA 
accreditation 

Not yet 
known 

Overall satisfaction of employers, active 
members and pensions measured by 
surveys 

Rolling 12-month performance to end 
September 2020 is 96.4%  

>90% 
 

Proportion of active members receiving a 
benefit statement and time of year 
statement is issued 

Met 100% issued by 
31 August 2020 

 

Proportion of critical pensions 
administration work completed within 
standards (PA1) 

96.74% 95.48%  >92%  

Acknowledge the death of a member to 
next of kin within 5 working days. (PA2) 97.16% 92.63%  96%  

Estimate requested by employer of 
retirement benefits within 10 working days. 
(PA3) 

100% 100%  91%  

Notification of dependant benefits within 5 
working days of receiving all necessary 
paperwork.(PA4) 

91.19% 92.6%  96%  

Notify early leavers entitled to deferred 
benefits of their rights and options within 
10 days of being informed of end of 
pensionable service. (PA5) 

99.16% 99.51%  91%  

Notify members holding more than 3 
months, but less than 2 year service, of 
their options at leaving.  Target is within 10 
days of the end of the one month and a day 
lying period or after the employer providing 
full leaving information if later.(PA6) 

89.03% 88.86%  85%  

Pay a refund of contributions within 7 
working days of receiving the completed 
declaration and bank detail form. (PA7) 

97.37% 98.32%  91%  

Pay any lump sum death grant within 7 
working days of receipt of the appropriate 
documentation. (PA8) 

99.04% 99.55%  96%  

Pay lump sum retirement grant within 7 
working days of receiving all the 98.17% 98.63%  96%  

Page 50



 Q1 

April to 
June 

Q2 

July to 
Sept 

Q3 

Oct to Dec 

Target Status 

information we need from the member. 
(PA9) 

Payment of CETV within 20 working days of 
receiving all completed transfer out forms. 
(PA10) 

98.00% 97.61%  96%  

Pension Admin Workflow - Non Key 
Procedures Performance. (PA11) 82.18% 72.90%  75%  

Provide a maximum of one guaranteed 
Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) 
within 10 working days of receiving a 
request. (PA12) 

90.37% 90.67%  91%  

Provide new members with scheme 
information within 20 working days of 
getting details from employer (PA13) 

99.87% 95.19%  100%  

Provide transfer-in quote within 10 working 
days of receiving the Cash Equivalent 
Transfer Value (CETV) from member’s 
previous pension provider. (PA14) 

70.00% 85.56%  96%  

Investigate and respond to a complaint - 
within 20 working days (PA15) 100.00% 100%  96%  

Audit of annual report Met Unqualified 
opinion 

 

Percentage of employer contributions paid 
within 19 days of month end  

99.63% 99.6%  99.00%  

Data quality – compliance with best 
practice as defined by the Pensions 
Regulator 

Met  Fully compliant   
 

Monthly Pension Payroll paid on time 
(Service1) 

100% 100%  Yes 
 

Level of sickness absence (Service4) 1.18% 1.4%  4% 
 

Proportion of staff engaged as measured in 
the Staff Engagement Survey 

73% 70% 
 

Percentage of staff that have completed 
two days training per year.  

on track 59%   100% 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



 

Appendix 2 

 

Service Plan Membership and Cashflow Monitoring 2020/21 

 

 

 

 

Lothian Pension Fund 
2020/21 

YTD 

2020/21 

Projected 

Income £’000 £’000 

Contributions from Employers 84,083 185,000 

Contributions from Employees 24,710 50,000 

Transfers from Other Schemes 2,562 5,500 

 111,355 240,500 

Expenditure   

Pension Payments (93,121) (186,500) 

Lump Sum Retirement Payments (24,451) (60,000) 

Refunds to Members Leaving Service (290) (500) 

Transfers to Other Schemes (4,699) (10,000) 

Administrative expenses (1,300) (2,600) 

 (123,861) (259,600) 

Net Additions/(Deductions) From Dealings with Members (12,506) (19,100) 

Scottish Homes Pension Fund 
2020/21 

YTD 
2020/21 

Projected 

Income £’000 £’000 

Administration charge 70 70 

Expenditure   

Pension Payments (3,341) (6,720) 

Lump Sum Retirement Payments (364) (750) 

Transfers to Other Schemes - (100) 

Administrative expenses (35) (70) 

 (3,740) (7,640) 

Net Additions/(Deductions) From Dealings with Members (3,673) (7,570) 

Page 52



Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 9 December 2020 Page 1 

Pensions Committee 
2.00pm, Wednesday, 9 December 2020 

Risk Management Summary 

1.  Recommendations

Struan Fairbairn 
Chief Risk Officer, Lothian Pension Fund 

Contact: Sean Reid, Risk and Compliance Manager, Lothian Pension Fund 

E-mail: Sean.Reid@edinburgh.gov.uk

Page 53

Agenda Item 6.5

mailto:Sean.Reid@edinburgh.gov.uk


 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 2 

Risk Management Summary – In Depth Review 
 

2. Executive Summary 

 

3. Background 

 

 

 

4. Main Report 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Financial impact 

 

Page 55



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 9 December 2020      Page 4 

6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact 

 

 

7. Background reading/external references 

 

8. Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Quarterly Risk Overview, as at 2 November 2020 

Page 56



Appendix 1 
 

Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Quarterly Risk Overview 

02 November 2020 

 

Page 57



 

 2 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

This document provides a summary of the assessment of the LPF group’s risks by the Risk 
Management Group on 02 November 2020. 

The LPF group continues to go through a period of meaningful business transformation, in seeking to 
enhance its operating model and extend its service delivery to other LGPS funds.  In doing so it has 
taken on additional operational risk within its appetite in order to achieve benefits for its 
stakeholders. In particular, over the coming year the group expects to have delivered: 

• a new ICT provider with bespoke governance and control arrangements, and associated 
system enhancements;   

• a new portfolio management service/platform for collaborative partner pension funds;  
• a refit of its existing office space for the immediate 12-18 months and thereafter progress on 

moving to an office best aligned to its long-term strategy;  
• increased ‘key person’ resilience within its core investment and pensions administration 

teams, as well as a central support function with enhanced HR, Comms, Compliance and 
Governance resource; and  

• further governance enhancements arising from the 2019 review.  

The quarter’s risk reporting also continues to be heavily influenced by the COVID-19 pandemic. The 
business is now moving towards implementing a more medium-term strategy to accommodate the 
continuation of remote working, whilst bringing our people together in a controlled manner to 
reduce the risk of underlying inefficiencies and any adverse impact on our culture and controls.  

Potential impacts from the ongoing McCloud consultation remain closely monitored and are a factor 
in assessments in a number of areas.  

Cyber security also remains a key theme in our monitoring as we continue to see increased impact in 
the wider sector and more specifically on certain of our business partners and suppliers.  

Key changes since last quarter include: 

• 3 risks decreased from Amber to Green due to revised probability scores: Pension 
Committee decisions (9); Pension Board effectiveness (10); Over reliance on a core provider 
(32) 

• 3 risks increased from Green to Amber, due to revised impact and probability scores: Failure 
of an employer to pay contributions (3); Claim or liability arising from shared services (28); 
Inadequate, or failure of, supplier / third party systems (35) 

• 1 new risk added: Staff culture and engagement (8). Initial risk assessment is Amber. 

Further details on each are provided in the overview. 

Several notable risks – IT systems; business continuity; data breach, cyber security - remain static, 
although meaningful progress has been made on the procurement process for new ICT provider. It is 
anticipated they will only reduce meaningfully once this process is completed, and related 
enhancements are delivered. 

Page 58



 

 3 

The overall position remains stable and within appetite in the context of the longer-term risk 
reduction benefits of the ongoing transformation projects and the circumstances of a global 
pandemic.

DETAILED OVERVIEW 

 

UPDATE ON MOST NOTABLE RISKS 

 

Risk & Reference Number Update Trend / RAG 

Failure of IT systems used 
in the fund with serious 
consequences for 
investment management, 
benefit administration and 
oversight activities (7) 

 

The core ICT platform continues to be resilient, with key issues being 
escalated and prioritised appropriately and many enhancements in 
LPF’s Digital Strategy already being delivered by the incumbent 
supplier in response to the pandemic. There are naturally ongoing 
issues and inefficiencies generated by the significant increase in 
demand on the platform, but this is currently the same across all 
businesses and sectors.  
 
This risk has remained static due to the continued additional reliance 
placed on ICT functions, and heightened impact of any outages or 
failure, whilst all LPF group staff continue to work from home in the 
prevailing circumstances of the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
Additional ICT continuity oversight is in place during COVID-19 
through the creation of the LPF Recovery Group, which monitors 
implementation of the business continuity plan and supports the ICT 
Oversight and Governance Manger/Group by providing enhanced 
management and monitoring of specific operational issues arising 
from the circumstances of the pandemic. 
 
In addition, LPF continues to identify and resolve ‘business as usual’ 
issues and progress critical ongoing projects through its ICT 
Oversight Group and function. Those include continuing to progress 
(i) the Digital Strategy and appointment of the new ICT provider, (ii) 
systems access, security governance and supplier diligence, and (iii) 
resolving laptop availability for new staff.  The ‘change’ process with 
the incumbent provider continues to be slow. 
 
A project group continues to monitor the operation of the Charles 
River Investment Management System (CRIMS) following its 
implementation, as well as providing oversight of its supplier. 
Refinements are identified/tracked and fixes resolved on an ongoing 
basis. 
 

 
Static 

 
 
 
 

Page 59



 

 4 

Risk & Reference Number Update Trend / RAG 

Business continuity issues 
(11) 

The business continuity plan is still in place and continues to be 
successful.  It has recently been updated to adapt to the 
developments and phases of the pandemic, as well as other 
developments within the LPF group. The business continuity risk 
score remains the same this quarter simply because the continuity 
plan is still in operation and therefore the LPF group continues to be 
in a period of taking special continuity measures.  
 
LPF’s Recovery Group continues to implement, oversee and refine 
continuity arrangements to further mitigate this risk. The Senior 
Leadership Team (SLT), ICT Oversight, People and Risk Groups also 
continue to address specific matters alongside, and in liaison with, 
the Recovery Group.   
 
‘Key workers’ have been identified and are supported by guidance 
ensuring that social distancing is adhered to at all times, as well as 
health and safety regulation.  The ‘Key Workers’ policy is currently 
being refreshed and will be updated shortly.   Critical activities are 
undertaken in the office by the identified key workers.  In addition, 
to the relevant health and safety procedures, all staff have now 
completed online ‘Workstation Setup’ training (applicable to office 
and home setups). 
 
As reported last quarter, the planned office move is currently on hold 
with the more immediate priority being the plan, now underway, for 
the return of staff to the existing office premises. After reviewing the 
current office facilities, it has been agreed that a prudent office re-
fit is required to enable staff to return safely to the existing office, 
working a blended home-office working model.  The office refit is 
expected to be complete by January and will allow 40 members of 
staff to work safely in the office for the interim, until a move to a 
new office can be planned.  
 

 
Static 

Page 60



 

 5 

Risk & Reference Number Update Trend / RAG 

Members' confidential data 
is lost or made public. 
Breach of Data Protection 
Act. (12) 

There continues to be a potential increased risk of cyber attacks as a 
result of COVID-19 and LPF, as with the wider business community, 
has experienced targeted phishing attacks. LPF has also received a 
number of notifications from its suppliers and other intermediaries 
that they have had systems compromised and confirming the 
remedial action being taken.  
 
LPF continues to strengthen controls around the security of 
members’ confidential data, with additional checks to folder security, 
remote working and other key activites.  The use of new facilities by 
LPF, such as for mail processing and scanning, is under detailed 
review to ensure these processes continue to be secure. 
 
This risk remains on red because of the combination of cyber threat 
and a number of other business continuity matters (office access, 
challenges around full remote working, cross systems reliance) 
arising as a result of the pandemic. 
 

 
Static 

Cybersecurity protections 
and/or back-up not 
sufficient to prevent cyber-
attacks or minimise their 
impact (36) 

As mentioned above, there is a currently a potential increased risk of 
cyber attacks due to COVID-19 with increasing amounts of phishing 
and other attempted forms of cyber-fraud on both LPF and its 
suppliers.  There is no question this remains a substantially increasing 
risk to the sector at large during this period of business continuity 
upheaval. LPF is communicating key messages to all staff regarding 
cybersecurity and has reminded employees to be vigilant.   
 
All staff have now completed ‘Information and Cybersecurity’ online 
training. 
 
The ICT Oversight and Governance Manager continues to review the 
robustness of systems and processes and is progessing the Digital 
Strategy, which itself will allow enhancements to controls and 
governance in this area.  However this risk remains amber until the 
perceived potential risk of attack is reduced.  
 

 
Static 

 

Page 61



 

 6 

Risk & Reference Number Update Trend / RAG 

Acting beyond proper 
authority/delegations. (23) 

LPF has paid close attention to the operation of its delegations under 
the present circumstances, with all the team remote working and 
with key person dependencies in mind. The group has only requiried 
minimal adaption to current processes so far and has sought to 
introduce supporting systems (e.g. e-signing) where necessary to 
mitigate any associated continuity risks.  
 
LPF is also looking to update and refresh its delegations by the end 
of December to take account of: (i) recent appointments and updates 
arising from its organisational development review, (ii) the operation 
of the  property portfolios, (iii) SM&CR implementation, (iv) the LPF 
Governance Review, and (v) the implementation of the new Front 
Office system.  In addition, LPF has provided further employee 
communications to reinforce awareness of scheme of delegation 
requirements and will update its new website to ensure its group 
governance structures are clearer.  
 
Due to the prevailing circumstances and the outstanding actions the 
risk remains on amber, although there has been no breach in existing 
delegations.  
 

 
Static 

 
 
 

Procurement/framework 
breach (25) 

LPF is continuing to work closely and well with CEC’s procurment 
team to best align its procurement processes to the specific needs of 
the LPF group business and also to satisfy CEC’s parent oversight 
requirements.  
 
The risk is static due to the enhanced impact the procurement regime 
has on LPF’s developing business model (sitting unusually within all 
of the financial services, pensions and public sector regimes) and the 
fact that it continues to be in the midst of developing new systems, 
controls and procedures in this area – with progress having been 
hampered by the prevailing circumstance of the last 6 months.  
 

 
Static 

Staff Resource within the 
Fund not sufficient to carry 
out core tasks in 
conjunction with active or 
anticipated projects. (33) 

This risk remains amber due to the additional resource attributable 
to significant strategic initiatives such as the implementation of the 
Digital Strategy, extension of investment managment services and 
Project Forth. However the Organisational Development Review has 
been sucessfully implemented and so LPF anticipates that the risk will 
reduce over the next few quarters. SLT are also due to carry out a 
follow up to the OD review to assess gaps, target resourcing priorities 
and set boundaries aswell.  
 
 

 
Static 

Page 62



 

 7 

Risk & Reference Number Update Trend / RAG 

Failure to pay pensions as 
they fall due including as a 
result of administration 
failure.  (15) 

This risk remains amber to reflect the COVID-19 enforced remote 
working arrangements.  The potential for staff absence on health 
grounds, IT failure and the increase of a potential cyber attack has 
also fed into the increase in this risk.  Pension payments have been 
identified as one of the five core critical tasks for the fund and as such 
the Recovery Group are monitoring and supporting processes 
carefully to mitigate the risk as far as possible.   
 

 
Static 

 

Adverse investment 
performance causes 
funding levels to fall 
requiring higher employer 
contributions. (1) 

LPF and the JISP continue to  review investment portfolios in order 
to understand the COVID-19 impact and continue to best position the 
fund.  In addition, LPF is engaging with the actuary regarding 
assumptions as part of triennial valuation.  This risk remains amber 
until review is complete and actions are clear.  

 
Static 

Failure of an employer to 
pay contributions (3) 

Employers continue to be under increasing financial pressure due to 
the global pendemic and resulting economic implications. The fund 
contiues to monitor this on an ongoing basis and has established 
structures and processes to engage with its employers around 
affordability and potential exit.  
 

Increased 

Claim or liability arising 
from shared services (28) 

This risk has increased to amber due to a combination of investment 
management services due to go live, and exposure arising from 
Project Forth. 
 
Periodic consultant review of systems, controls and service delivery 
will be scheduled once investment services are live. 

Increased 

Inadequate, or failure of, 
supplier / third party 
systems (35) 

Increased to amber due to reassessment of impact score. LPF is 
considering if some supplier ICT security arrangements require 
detailed review. Some third parties have notified LPF of minor cyber 
security breaches. 

Increased 

Pensions Committee (or 
other) members take 
decisions against sound 
advice, on political grounds 
or due to lack of 
knowledge (9) 

Risk decreased from amber – onboarding process for Interim 
Convener, including remote training, completed. 
 
LPF are currently assessing governance management systems and 
costs, with the aim of implementing an improved governance system 
to better support virtual committee meetings and future governance 
management.   
 
LPF is closely monitoring the separate, but very closely related, risk 
that members take decisions outside the fund’s framework which 
adversely impact on the fund. For example, the fund is currently 
looking into (as part of the governance review) the purpose and 
competency of certain matters being escalated to other Council 
bodies.  
 

 
Decreased 

 

Page 63



 

 8 

Risk & Reference Number Update Trend / RAG 

Pension Board does not 
operate effectively to 
detriment of the Fund (e.g. 
due to external factors, 
lack of 
attendance/participation 
or not maintaining 
sufficient levels of 
knowledge, skill and/or 
expertise.)  (10) 

This risk has now decreased from amber. Pension Board 
composition was reviewed, and the next composition review will 
take place in September 2021.  

Recruitment for the two Pension Board vacancies has commenced 
with a potential member representative.  The vacancy for the 
employer representative will be rebranded and advertised widely to 
encourage applicants.  
 

 
 

 
Decreased 

 
 

Over reliance on single 
service provider for core 
functions, potential leading 
to loss of service on the 
collapse or withdrawal of 
that provider (32)  

Core supplier resilience remains good despite COVID-19 pressures, 
based on engagement and due diligence to date. Impact assessment 
remains high but probabality, and therefore overall risk score, has 
been reduced. 

 
Decreased 

  

Page 64



 

 9 

NOTABLE RISKS: PROGRESSION OF CURRENT RISK (ACCOUNTING FOR CONTROLS) IN LAST THREE QUARTERS:  

  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

1 2 3

Failure of IT systems (7)

Business continuity issues (11)

Members' confidential data is
lost or made public. Breach of
Data Protection Act (12)

Cybersecurity protections
and/or back-up not sufficient to
prevent/minimise cyber-attacks.
(36)

Acting beyond proper
authority/delegations (23)

Procurement/framework breach
(25)

Staff Resource within the Fund
not sufficient to carry out core
tasks (33)

Pension Committee (or other)
members take decisions against
sound advice (9)

Pension Board not operating
effectively (10)

Late payment of pension (15)

Investment Performance
pressure on employer
contributions (1)

Failure of an employer to pay
contributions (3)

Claim or liability arising from
shared services (28)

Inadequate, or failure of,
supplier and other third-party
systems (including IT and data
security). (35)

Page 65



 

 10 

OTHER KEY POINTS 
New notable risks 
 

New risk introduced on culture and staff engagement:  
 
LPF’s culture and strategy is not consistently applied, taken up by staff or 
reinforced by SLT and senior managers with adverse impact on service delivery, 
internal controls, recruitment and retention. (8)  
 
The initial assessment of the risk places it in the amber category. 
 
 

Other new risks  
 

None 

New controls 
 

Introduction of ‘Culture’ risk controls, being (i) existing onboarding, performance 
management processes, staff surveys and board/SLT monitoring, (ii) enhanced second line 
compliance oversight and communications strategies. (8) 
 
Annual review of Governance Overview and enhanced ‘Horizon Scanning’. (20) 
 

Eliminated risks None. 
 

Other notable 
initiatives / 
actions 

Investment team and JISP reviewing portfolio in light of COVID-19-related reduction in 
income to identify opportunities to enhance returns. (1) 
 
Currently in discussions with actuary on assumptions. 2020 approach will change from 
deterministic to risk-based. (2) 
 
Funding Strategy Statement reviewed as part of 2020 valuation. Further consultation 
exercise to follow once individual employer valuation results are available from the Actuary 
with final draft to be presented to Pensions Committee in March 2021 (3) 
 
Recruitment of Investment / Property Administrator. (4) 
 
Talent and succession planning ongoing. (4) 
 
Additional NED being appointed to improve governance. (4) 
 
AML training scheduled for all staff to complete Q4 2020. (5) 
 
Mobile call recording not yet in place but being prioritised. (5) 
 
Ongoing review of ALTAIR role profiles to eliminate any ability for user to create payment 
and authorise it (5) 
 
New staff performance management process to be implemented 2021 (8) 
 
Action planning to address results from Your Voice employee survey (8) 
 
Structural changes to support training and management of new recruits (8) 
 
Remote Pension Committee meetings will continue until December, LPF liaising with CEC 
Governance to prepare for 2021 committee meetings. (9) 
 

Page 66



 

 11 

LPF are currently assessing governance management systems and costs with the aim of 
implementing an improved governance system to better support virtual committee 
meetings and future governance management. (9) 
 
Continuing to review actions of Pension Committee members outside of LPF’s regulated 
forums and structure (e.g. main Council) as part of Governance Review. (9) 
 
Next review of Pension Board composition will take place in September 2021.  
 
Recruitment for the two Pension Board vacancies has commenced with a potential 
member representative.  The vacancy for the employer representative will be rebranded 
and advertised widely to encourage applicants. (10) 
 
Additional meetings with board members to discuss governance clarifications.  (10) 
 
LPF liaising with CEC to ensure appropriate intra-group arrangements to manage data 
breach risk and reporting (12) 
 
Enhanced communications and SLT reinforcement of PAD policy and procedures in 
response to recent low-level issues identified as part of routine PAD approvals and annual 
disclosure process (16) 
 
Work on supplier management framework being progressed by Business Transformation 
Assurance Partner (19) 
 
LPFE board to consider need to appoint interim convener to its board. (27) 
 
SLT and advisory action to mitigate any exposure arising from any merger and associated 
transition. (28) 
 
Acting on third party cyber breach notifications. (35) 
 

  
Material litigation  
 

None.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
Page 67



 

 12 

ALL RISKS: STATUS OVERVIEW  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

23
20 20 20

10
12 12 13

1 3 3
3

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Q4 2019-20 Q1 2020-21 Q2 2020-21 Q3 2020-21

Materially Beyond Appetite

Beyond Appetite

Within Appetite

Page 68



 

 13 

QUARTER 3 
2020/21 ALL RISKS: IMPACT AND PROBABILITY OVERVIEW    

 

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty
 

10                     

9                     

8                     

7       3 2           

6       14 20           

5       10 11, 27 12, 25, 33   7     

4     8 5, 29, 30, 
34, 35 

1, 6, 9, 18, 
19, 22, 28 4, 23, 31 32       

3     13 24 16           

2       17             

1         21       15   

  1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

  
Impact 

P
age 69



 

 14 
 

Notable Risks table 
Risk No 
below 

↓ Description

Q4 
2016/17 

Total

Q1 
2017/18 

Total

Q2 
2017/18 

Total

Q3 
2017/18 

Total

Q4 
2017/18 

Total

Q1 
2018/19 

Total

Q2 
2018/19 

Total

Q3 
2018/19 

Total

Q4 
2018/19 

Total

Q1 
2019/20 

Total

Q2 
2019/20 

Total

Q3 
2019/20 

Total

Q4 
2019/20 

Total

Q1 
2020/21 

Total

Q2 
2020/21 

Total

Q3 
2020/21 

Total

1 Investment Performance pressure on employer contributions 
2 Adverse Movement - pressure on employer contributions (2)
3 Failure of an employer to pay contributions (3)
4 Retention of key staff (4)
5 Fraud by LPF staff or relating to members (including pension l   

6
Staff negligence, maladministration or lack of specialist 
knowledge (6)

7 Failure of IT systems (7)
8 Staff culture and engagements issues (8)
9 Pension Committee (or other) members take decisions agains    

10 Pension Board not operating effectively (10)
11 Business continuity issues (11)
12 Members' confidential data is lost or made public. Breach of D    

↓ Description

Q4 
2016/17 

Total

Q1 
2017/18 

Total

Q2 
2017/18 

Total

Q3 
2017/18 

Total

Q4 
2017/18 

Total

Q1 
2018/19 

Total

Q2 
2018/19 

Total

Q3 
2018/19 

Total

Q4 
2018/19 

Total

Q1 
2019/20 

Total

Q2 
2019/20 

Total

Q3 
2019/20 

Total

Q4 
2019/20 

Total

Q1 
2020/21 

Total

Q2 
2020/21 

Total

Q3 
2020/21 

Total

13 Loss due to stock lending default (13)
14 Risk of incorrect pension payments (14)
15 Late payment of pension (15)
16 Market abuse by investment team (16)
17 Portfolio transition issues (17)
18 Disclosure of confidential information (18)
19 Material breach of contract (19)
20 Regulatory breach (20)
21 FOI process in accordance with law (21)
22 Incorrect communication with members (22)
23 Acting beyond proper authority/delegations (23)
24 Inappropriate use of pension fund monies (24)

↓ Description

Q4 
2016/17 

Total

Q1 
2017/18 

Total

Q2 
2017/18 

Total

Q3 
2017/18 

Total

Q4 
2017/18 

Total

Q1 
2018/19 

Total

Q2 
2018/19 

Total

Q3 
2018/19 

Total

Q4 
2018/19 

Total

Q1 
2019/20 

Total

Q2 
2019/20 

Total

Q3 
2019/20 

Total

Q4 
2019/20 

Total

Q1 
2020/21 

Total

Q2 
2020/21 

Total

Q3 
2020/21 

Total

25 Procurement/framework breach (25)

26
Procurement process compromising ability to secure 
required resource. (26)

27 Group structure and governance fully compliant and up-to-da  
28 Claim or liability arising from shared services (28)
29 Unauthorise access to PensionsWEB (29)
30 Incorrect data from Employers leading to fines (30)
31 Inadequate contractual protection for services (31)
32 Over reliance on single core service provider  (32)
33 Staff Resource within the Fund not sufficient to carry out core  
34 Breach of Health and safety regulations (34)

35
Inadequate, or failure of, supplier and other third-party 
systems (including IT and data security). (35)

36
Cybersecurity protections and/or back-up not sufficient to 
prevent/minimise cyber-attacks. (36)

P
age 70



 

 15 

 
KEY: RISKS BY NUMBER 
 

1 Adverse Investment performance causes funding levels to fall requiring higher employer 
contributions. 

20 Regulatory Breach. 

2 Adverse change in non-investment actuarial assumptions causes funding levels to fall requiring 
higher employer contributions assumptions- pressure on employer contributions. 

21 FOI process not in accordance with law. 

3 Failure of an employer to pay contributions causes funding levels to fall, requiring higher 
contributions from other employers. 

22 Incorrect communication with members. 

4 Failure to recruit, engage and retain talent leads to workforce capability gaps with implications 
for oversight, control, administration and achievement of service plan goals. 

23 Acting beyond proper authority/delegations. 

5 Fraud or theft of Pension fund assets. 24 Inappropriate use of pension fund monies. 
6 Staff Negligence. 25 

26 
Procurement/framework breach. 
Procurement process compromising ability to secure required resource. 

7 Failure of IT systems used in the fund with serious consequences for investment management, 
benefit administration and oversight activities. 

27 Group Structure and Governance not fully compliant and up to date 
(including integration of subsidiaries) or working effectively resulting in 
adverse impact on group strategy and business plan delivery. 

8 Staff culture and engagement issues (new Q3 2020) 28 Claim or liability arising from shared services. 
9 Committee members take decisions against sound advice. 29 Unauthorised access to PensionsWEB. 
10 Pension Board not operating effectively. 30 Incorrect data from Employers leading to fines etc. 
11 Business continuity issues. 31 Inadequate contractual protection for services. 
12 Members’ confidential data is breached. 32 Over reliance on single core service provider. 
13 Loss due to stock lending default. 33 Human resource insufficient to carry out active projects. 
14 Risk of incorrect pension payments. 34 Breach of health and safety regulations. 
15 
16 

Failure to pay pensions as they fall due. 
Market abuse by investment team or others. 

35 Inadequate, or failure of, supplier and other third-party systems (including 
IT and data security). 

17 
18 

Portfolio transition issues. 
Disclosure of confidential information. 

36 Cybersecurity protections and/or back-up not enough to prevent cyber-
attacks or minimise their impact. 

19 Material breach of contract.   
 

  

P
age 71



 

 16 

 

Risk Status 

 

Materially beyond appetite: resolve urgently 
where possible (probability and impact total 35 
and above) 

 
Beyond appetite: resolve where possible 
(probability and impact total 25 to 34) 

 
Within appetite: monitor (probability and 
impact total 24 and below) 

 

 
 

  

 
 
 
Risk Scoring 

 Impact   Probability 
0 (None)  0 (None) 
1 No discernible effect  1 Virtually impossible 
2 Little discernible effect  2 Extremely unlikely 
3 Some effect noticeable  3 Remotely possible 
4 Some effect on service provision  4 May occur 
5 Noticeable effect on service provision  5 Fairly likely to occur 
6 Some disruption of service  6 More likely to occur than not 
7 Significant service disruption  7 Likely to happen 
8 Material disruption to services  8 Probably will happen 
9 Major service disruption  9 Almost certainly will happen 

10 Catastrophic  10 Already happening 
 

  

P
age 72



 

 17 

BACKGROUND PROCESS AND PARAMETERS (EXTRACTED FROM RISK REGISTER) 

 

The Risk Management Group, and risk register, form part of the LPF group’s critical assurance framework, covers all entities within the group and should be read in conjunction 
with the other forms of assurance set out in LPF’s assurance overview document.  

The register is formally considered by the Risk Management Group quarterly but is also updated on an ad hoc basis where required. The register also takes into account material 
risks identified by the wider business, including arising from (i) the other oversight groups (e.g. SLT, People, ICT Oversight and/or any relevant project groups), (ii) any prior board, 
committee and stakeholder feedback, and (iii) compliance monitoring and processes (e.g. breach reporting, whistleblowing). 

The Risk Management Group itself comprises senior officers of each function within the LPF group, as well as the Senior Leadership Team (SLT). All members are accountable for 
escalating material risks, with a particular focus on their respective areas, for consideration. If relevant and deemed sufficiently material, the risk will be included in the register 
and monitored by the risk function in conjunction with the relevant business unit. 

The approved risk register is tabled and considered by SLT following sign-off to ensure additional oversight and ongoing engagement with any resulting actions. Those actions are 
tracked and followed up by the LR&C team with the business on an ongoing basis. The risk register is also circulated to the conveners of the Pensions Committee and Audit Sub- 
Committee, Chair of the Pension Board and Independent Professional Observer on a quarterly basis, with summary analysis and reporting provided to those bodies each quarter. 
In addition, an in-depth risk report is provided to the Audit Sub Committee annually, which includes a review of the full register.  

The risk register is a continually evolving document and doesn’t purport to be a comprehensive list of every risk or potential exposure to which the LPF group entities are subject 
or involved in managing. It should therefore continue to be read in the context of the LPF group’s overall business strategy, risk appetite and assurance map. The risk register may 
cross-refer to separate operational project management tools or action trackers which monitor relevant items in more granular detail and for which the business units are 
accountable.  

Importantly, that risk appetite and assurance structure will flex to ensure that it continues to be proportionate to the size and nature of the business of the LPF group and also 
adhere to the following industry best practice principles: 

 Ensure that the LPF group’s risk appetite aligns with its strategy and is set by its senior management team without undue influence either externally or otherwise 
across its assurance stack. 
 

 Integrates risk as a key component of the group’s management and decision-making processes, and so through the spine of its governance and operations. 
 

P
age 73



 

 18 

 Engenders an open, ‘live’ and engaged risk culture which seeks to pro-actively identify current and future risks for the business, simplifying layers of controls to ensure 
this is not stifled, and so…  

 
 Not establish or perpetuate systems, controls or processes which are out of line with, or disproportionate to, the group’s risk appetite. That can be counterproductive 

in distracting key focus and resource away from delivering the group’s strategy, core function and assurance over a manageable number of critical risks. 
 
 Remain aligned to LPF’s existing resources and organisational development.  

 
 Ensure an effective and independent risk and compliance function is maintained, as a general principle and in line with the standards of the UK regulated financial 

services sector.  
 
 Ensure appropriate levels of separation and independence of each of the ‘four lines of defence’, as a general principle and in line with the standards of the UK regulated 

financial services sector. 
 

 Ensure appropriate levels of co-operation and information sharing across the ‘four lines of defence’. 
 
 

P
age 74



Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 9.1
by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A
 of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5.1 Minute of 29 September 2020
	5.1 Confidential Schedule - Minute - 29.09.20

	6.2 Agenda Planning
	6.2 Agenda Planning
	Pensions Committee
	Agenda Planning
	1.  Recommendations
	2. Executive Summary
	2.

	3. Background
	3.

	4. Main Report
	4.

	5. Financial impact
	5.

	6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact
	6.

	7. Background reading/external references
	7.

	8. Appendices



	6.2 Appendix 1 Agenda Planning

	6.3 Stewardship and Engagement
	6.3 Stewardship and Engagement
	Pensions Committee
	Stewardship and Engagement
	1.  Recommendations

	Stewardship and Engagement
	2. Executive Summary
	2.

	3. Background
	3.

	4. Main Report
	4.

	5.  Financial impact
	5.

	6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact
	6.

	7. Background reading/external references
	7.

	8. Appendices



	6.3 Appendix 1 - Stewardship and Engagement
	Criteria
	Reporting and Disclosure
	Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI)
	Stewardship Code 2020
	Taskforce for Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
	Service Providers
	EOS a Federated Hermes (EOS)
	Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF)
	MSCI ESG Research
	GRESB
	Additional Voluntary Initiatives
	Climate Action 100+
	Transition Pathway Initiative (TPI)
	CDP
	Institutional Investor Group on Climate Change (IIGCC)


	6.4 Operating Plan Update
	6.4 Operating Plan Update
	6.4 Appendix 1 and 2 Operating Plan update

	6.5 Risk Management Summary
	6.5 Risk Management Summary
	Pensions Committee
	Risk Management Summary
	1.  Recommendations

	Risk Management Summary – In Depth Review
	2. Executive Summary
	2.

	3. Background
	3.

	4. Main Report
	4.

	5. Financial impact
	5.

	6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact
	6.

	7. Background reading/external references
	7.

	8. Appendices



	6.5 Appendix 1 Quarterly Risk Overview FINAL 02 November

	9.1 Governance Update

